
07/19/2016 

 

 
 

Fire Union Negotiation Meeting Minutes 
 

Meeting Date & Time: 7/19/2016; 1:06pm – 3:32pm 

Attendee Position Company/Department 
Scott Marotz Professional Negotiator  
David Gates Chief Fire 
Joyce Stroschein CFO Finance 
Nichole Harms HR Consultant HR 
Lynette Sampson Legal Asst. Legal 
Anne Butler Interim Director HR 
Heather Buchanan HR Consultant HR 
Ryan O’Hearn President, IAFF 187 Fire 
Curtis Smith Negotiation member, IAFF 187 Fire 
David Scott Negotiation member, IAFF 187 Fire 
Eric Anderson Negotiation member, IAFF 187 Fire 
Mick Coward Negotiation member, IAFF 187 Fire 
Absent: Andy Moldenhauer   
Meeting Notes 
 

City of Pocatello and IAFF 

#187 Union Negotiation 

 Meeting opened at 1:06 p.m. by Scott Marotz. 

 

Session #6: 

 

 S. Marotz opened the meeting by asking R. O’Hearn about the meeting 
minutes from previous sessions.  According to State Statute, minutes must 
be posted; R. O’Hearn stated he would review the minutes this week.  L. 
Sampson asked about F-7 and F-6. C. Smith stated that F-7 was to correct 
the misspelling of “alcohol” under Article 33 and in the Table of Contents.  
R. O’Hearn provided a clean copy of F-6 for signature as Tentatively 
Agreed on June 30, 2016 and F-6 was signed. 

 S. Marotz distributed City Counter to F-4, a complete redline contract 
and explained the changes.  Discussed changes included the removal of 
restrictive language that does not work in multi-year contracts and addition 
of a compensation committee and a starting point for wage increase 
discussions.  S. Marotz summarized the meeting with the City Council 
regarding the union contracts.  S. Marotz stated that three years is too long 
and there is the issue of the gap in wages.  S. Marotz stated that he would 
like a 2 year instead of a 3 year contract and then trying to figure out wage 
increases for this year and next year.  S. Marotz stated that he cannot 
politically or in good conscience make an offer to increase fire wages in 
this contract beyond what the Pocatello Fraternal Order of Police (FOP) 

http://pocatello.us/


07/19/2016 

received.  Article 9 in City Counter to F-4 was left blank as a discussion 
point.  Another City concern regarding fire wages is that any increase to 
the base wage increases everything else (ad pays, over time, longevity, 
etc.) and makes problems with the salary schedule bigger and more 
difficult to bring in to line once a new structure is determined.  S. Marotz 
stated that any wage increase this year cannot go to the base; he proposed a 
1 time bonus as an ad pay as it will not impact other numbers and is 
simpler for calculation purposes.  R. O’Hearn and C. Smith asked about 
Article 9.  C. Smith asked if the ad pay would be prorated over the fiscal 
year and then it would go away, so it’s really just a one year payment.  S. 
Marotz stated that the next year would be looked at, what do we do?  Does 
the City keep it in place for the next fiscal year or keep it in place with 
more; but it still has to be non-base.  S. Marotz stated that the issue is the 
increase to the base and this is the City’s attempt to get the Union more 
money without making the compensation problem worse.  R. O’Hearn 
stated that if the proposed compensation committee demonstrates the 
Union members are underpaid, and then compensation will be increased so 
adjusting the base now will not add to the problem.  R. O’Hearn stated that 
by adding to the base it shows the City is working to resolve the problem 
instead of keeping the Union low and also giving them a bonus.  S. Marotz 
responded that the City is not keeping the Union low, the Union is 
basically getting the same amount of money that was given to the police 
and that amount is the ceiling. S. Marotz stated that the amount given to 
police would represent a base increase of .5% to .75% to the Union or they 
could look at 1.5% 1 time bonus.  S. Marotz stated that once the 1.5% 1 
time bonus is in the budget, it will be budgeted the next fiscal year and can 
be factored into the new compensation scheme to be distributed where it is 
most needed; if the increase is to the base, the City has no flexibility to 
make a new compensation scheme work.  J. Stroschein stated that once the 
numbers are in the budget, the City is able to take that amount and apply it 
as needed to start to address the compensation problem in the fire 
department and pay people as needed for retention.  S. Marotz confirmed 
that the increase as a bonus gives the compensation committee the ability 
to address pay issues.  R. O’Hearn asked what the ceiling was in police 
that was negotiated; what was the number?  S. Marotz stated that the cost 
of the police’s salary increase was $79,000 and they gave up longevity in 
order to get that which the City is not asking the Union to do although the 
City would like for the Union to do so.  R. O’Hearn asked what S. Marotz 
means with giving up longevity.  S. Marotz stated that everyone is 
grandfathered where they are at now and there is nobody moved into 
longevity that wasn’t already in and nobody gets an increase to longevity 
starting October 1.  S. Marotz continued that there will be ad pays paid to 
those people to keep those people even and as salaries increase, ad pays 
diminish until gone. R. O’Hearn asked if the $79,000 is what the Union 
would be held to for FY17 bonus; S. Marotz answered in the affirmative.  
S. Marotz stated that that equates to about 1.5% of base; if the amount 
goes to the base with that amount of money, it is basically .55% or .6% as 
you have to take into consideration over time, ad pays, longevity changes, 
and others.  R. O’Hearn asked if the concern with adding it to the base is 
that it will increase the longevity multiplier; J. Stroschein and S. Marotz 
answered in the affirmative.  S. Marotz stated that whatever is applied to 



07/19/2016 

the base also effects other ad pays; R. O’Hearn asked what those are.  S. 
Marotz stated EMT ad pay, anything that is calculated on the base and he 
thinks everything is based on base pay and it increases everything across 
the board.   J. Stroschein stated that the numbers aren’t necessarily based 
on your base pay; your base pay is based on the classification above yours.  
S. Marotz clarified that the 1 time bonus will not have a negative effect on 
PERSI as PERSI is credited based on total compensation.  S. Marotz stated 
that when looking at the costs, PERSI and taxes are part of those costs. R. 
O’Hearn asked for caucus. 

 Caucus 1:24pm – 2:14pm 
 R. O’Hearn started the meeting after caucus by stating that the Union 

looked at City counter to F-4 and cannot accept it as written. S. Marotz 
asked what the Union’s specific issues are instead of just general.  R. 
O’Hearn stated that issues are wages, health care, Bargaining Unit levels, 
and the language that stipulates the outcome of the compensation 
committee; he stated that they cannot get the membership to ratify.  R. 
O’Hearn stated that the Union came a long way off of their position.  S. 
Marotz asked the Union for specific issues so they can be discussed.  R. 
O’Hearn stated that it appears the Union and City have some philosophical 
differences about long-term commitment to compensation and he doesn’t 
think that the Union can buy-off on doing away with longevity for what 
amounts to basically $900 per employee.  S. Marotz interjected that the 
City is not asking the Union to get rid of longevity here. R. O’Hearn 
responded that in 2 years they will to which S. Marotz stated that if the 
Union agrees to it at that point in time.  M. Coward stated that’s an 
outcome of the committee to get of longevity; S. Marotz responded that’s 
the goal but if the committee cannot agree to that, then there would be 
more than 1 recommendation to the negotiation team and it’s down to what 
gets negotiated in 2 years.  S. Marotz stated that it is the goal and the hope 
of the compensation committee to come up with a compensation program 
that removes longevity and brings the fire department to market rate or a 
mechanism that will bring market rate over a definitive amount of time.  S. 
Marotz stated that even if the compensation committee cannot come to a 
consensus, at least the committee’s efforts will give both sides the ability 
to operate from the same base of information to figure out how you 
negotiate in 2 years.  S. Marotz reiterated that there is nothing in the City’s 
proposal that says longevity goes away; it is still subject to negotiation in 2 
years.  S. Marotz stated that if you’re serious about having a committee 
look at things and come to a consolidated base of information so that we’re 
not talking in different directions, this is a way to start; and if the Union 
has specific issues with the language, then let’s talk about it because 
talking in generalities does not help us get anywhere.  R. O’Hearn stated 
that specifically there needs to be an increase in wages with a commitment 
to increase the base wage and all of the fall-out that comes with it.  R. 
O’Hearn stated the Union is not trying to break the bank, but they think 
that to move in that direction that it needs to go to the base.  R. O’Hearn 
stated that the Union is asking for a wage adjustment, not a 1 time bonus 
and this will make a plan sustainable.  C. Smith stated that one of the 
driving cruxes behind this is the healthcare.  C. Smith stated that it is a 
huge benefit to their members to be with the Northwest Firefighters Trust; 
it’s a better insurance, lower deductibles, lower out of pocket max, and no 



07/19/2016 

longer the co-pays on the premiums for employees which equates on this 
plan to $144 per month to families.  C. Smith stated that the City Council 
has said that they want to reach a plan that is beneficial to both parties and 
the benefit from what the Union presented was they would stay in the 
healthcare system with the City and the benefit for the Union was the 
increases in the base wages.  C. Smith stated that it appears from the City’s 
proposal that they are staying in the City’s healthcare plan and the Union 
is not getting an increase in wages; it appears roughly $900 per individual 
and for a lot of their members they’re talking over $1400 in healthcare 
premiums and lower deductibles and lower out of pocket max.  C. Smith 
stated that the proposal has to be beneficial to their members and he 
thought that was what the Council wanted; something that was beneficial 
to both parties.  A. Butler interjected that the City has not seen any of the 
Union’s insurance information.  N. Harms and S. Marotz stated that the 
City did receive some information; the plan design and the rates were 
estimated.  S. Marotz stated that he understands the insurance benefit to 
the Union members, but the cost to the City and other City employees is a 
definitive factor that the Union cannot ignore which is $323,000 to the 
City plus the additional out of pocket cost to every other City employee 
because of the increased premiums that although isn’t calculated at this 
time, it is estimated to be at least $100,000.  S. Marotz stated that without 
dealing with that problem, how can you ever look at any proposal being 
beneficial or even neutral to the City?  S. Marotz stated that what the 
Union is proposing is an absolute cost detriment to the City without any 
concept of how you make that neutral.  R. O’Hearn asked what about the 
increased cost to the Union body for being a low-risk pool by staying with 
the City’s insurance; they can attain better insurance at a lower cost for 
their group and he understands the fall-out for the change in the risk pool 
to the City.  R. O’Hearn stated that it is an increased cost to their members 
to stay with the City’s insurance; you want to talk about out of pocket to 
the other City employee’s, I understand that, it’s about $88 what an 
employee with a family pays per year with and without fire.  R. O’Hearn 
contends that Union employees realize a greater impact to their out of 
pocket for that co-insurance for those employee co-pays by being lumped 
into that larger pool that changes that risk.  R. O’Hearn stated that the 
double digit increases in insurance costs the City faced last year was what 
drove the Union to look elsewhere to control costs; S. Marotz responded 
that was to control costs for your membership and not for the City.  
Discussion ensued regarding Mercer, the size of insurance pools, and how 
entities cannot afford to get separate policies for different types of 
employees (i.e. healthier vs those who use insurance more often).   R. 
O’Hearn stated that getting back to the City’s Counter to F-4; the Union 
cannot accept it as written.  S. Marotz asked what the Union objected to 
and why.  R. O’Hearn stated Bargaining Unit levels, staffing, and wages.  
S. Marotz asked what the concerns are; from his standpoint, the longer the 
contract the more risks there are to both sides to have restrictions on 
staffing levels; if the contract is yearly, then more restrictive language is 
okay since it is negotiated each year.  R. O’Hearn responded you asked for 
more specifics, those are two.  S. Marotz asked how the Union would like 
that language to read.  R. O’Hearn stated that he would put that in S. 
Marotz’s court to bring something that R. O’Hearn would be able to sell to 



07/19/2016 

the Union membership; S. Marotz asked for R. O’Hearn to tell him what 
he wanted.   C. Smith stated the Union did.   C. Smith stated the Union 
presented the 3 year proposal with built in COLAs to the base; S. Marotz 
stated that the City cannot live with those numbers.  C. Smith then asked 
what the City can live with besides the blank numbers; what is the City 
Council willing to do for the Union?  S. Marotz stated the Council stated 
they are willing to give the Union the same as they gave police; those are 
the limits.  R. O’Hearn interjected and stated that the Union and City are a 
long way off from coming to an agreement; where are we now?  S. Marotz 
stated that the City can discuss the staffing levels, but can’t do a 3 year 
contract; 2 year contract acceptable.  S. Marotz stated the City is willing to 
discuss how to utilize the available funds for pay increases for the 
upcoming and next fiscal years.  R. O’Hearn stated that’s $79,000 for this 
year, and then how does the future look?  S. Marotz answered the Union 
would get whatever the police negotiated next year.  R. O’Hearn and C. 
Smith asked why the fire Union was handcuffed to what the police could 
negotiate; why couldn’t the fire Union negotiate wages next year to which 
S. Marotz responded because you’ve proposed a multiyear contract.  D. 
Scott asked what happens if the police negotiate a larger pool of money, 
there’s less left for us so next year would be less than $79,000.  D. Scott 
continued if the FOP is successful, there’s less money or if they’re less 
successful than they were this year then there would be more money; 
whatever it is, the available money is not going to change.  J. Stroschein 
indicated that there is no way for the City to know what money will be 
available next year. D. Scott then stated that then there is no guarantee that 
there’s any money on the table next year.  S. Marotz stated that the City 
does not know what money will be available; the City is only estimating 
available funds for the next year but the City is willing to put the second 
year in the contract and the fire Union will get the same dollar amount as 
the police negotiate.  S. Marotz stated that the new compensation scheme 
that the police are going to be under will be beneficial and that the police 
will likely see an increase next year.  S. Marotz expounded on the benefits 
of the new police system and the City’s thoughts on the potential benefits 
of a new compensation scheme to the City as a whole and including fire.  
S. Marotz stated that a 3 year contract is a risk to the City that is not 
logical and the fire Union will get less money forcing the City to put 
definitive numbers on the table today with a 3 year contract rather than 
negotiating annually.  R. O’Hearn asked if there was a plan for moving 
forward with the police to address compensation like a committee or will it 
be done through negotiations?  H. Buchanan responded that the matrix for 
police was designed during negotiations and is complete and percentages 
can easily be adjusted and will help with the compression issues they have.  
S. Marotz stated that the police matrix built steps into the system for 
increases and if the Union wants a copy, the police union signed their 
contract this morning. H. Buchanan stated she would be happy to sit down 
with the fire Union and go over the police’s matrix.  S. Marotz stated that 
the City and Union need to work together on the proposed committee to 
develop a compensation matrix in which wage goals can be met in a way 
that will not bankrupt the City.  S. Marotz expounded on market range and 
the goal of not paying people above their market range. C. Smith stated 
that fire only has 4 civilian individuals and 80 others.  S. Marotz stated 



07/19/2016 

that the differential between pay is an issue and some employees are much 
lower paid than others.  C. Smith wants to see the market; S. Marotz stated 
that is the goal of the proposed committee.  H. Buchanan said there is no 
target market rate it’s a market range that is adjustable.  H. Buchanan 
expounded on market vs COLA.  C. Smith asked where the numbers came 
from; H. Buchanan answered from the market study from BDPA and 
Northwest Data Exchange. S. Marotz stated that compensation was 
discussed with police; the FOP agreed that that range was reasonable.  H. 
Buchanan stated that it was beneficial working together with the FOP 
instead of the City constantly presenting numbers that we’re not really 
getting feedback on. H. Buchanan expounded on the process that took 
place with FOP.  J. Stroschein stated the development of the police 
compensation matrix resulted from the two sides working together and 
sharing information.  C. Smith asked if this was done in negotiation; S. 
Marotz expounded on the process. H. Buchanan stated that a new structure 
with fire would not be done during negotiations.  S. Marotz stated that the 
FOP agreed to a new compensation system that puts an end to longevity in 
a way that does not harm anyone in the system.  S. Marotz stated that the 
City and Union need to develop pay ranges, see where market is, need 
logical percentages, address compression issues, and how to address the 
base wage as the increased costs due to the impact of base on all other 
numbers; need flexibility to address compensation schedule.  S. Marotz 
discussed additional considerations for the committee to undertake.  R. 
O’Hearn interjected that the next meeting needs to be scheduled for next 
week and both sides need to see where the City and Union are at, the 
Union doesn’t know where to go from here, the Union doesn’t have a pay 
plan.  H. Buchanan stated that she does not need a pay plan from the 
Union; she doesn’t even know what the Union’s target is.  C. Smith stated 
he is frustrated; the Union has brought a pay plan year after year and 
nothing happens which is why they didn’t bring one this year; the Union is 
skeptical that the City Council will make changes with pay.  S. Marotz 
stated that he is not asking for that.  S. Marotz stated that to be clear the 
City is coming to the Union in good faith and telling the Union that the 
City has reached an agreement with FOP.  S. Marotz said the Union and 
FOP aren’t linked, but you are.  The FOP did not think there was any 
money available for wages, either; however, the FOP felt there were some 
things they could do to help the City and freezing longevity was one.  S. 
Marotz stated that initially the City Council did not expect there to be 
funds available for either union, but the Council is willing to put some 
money on the table for the Union, the same as they did for FOP.  S. Marotz 
clarified that at this time the City is not asking the Union to agree to a new 
compensation plan other than take the increase as a 1 time basis, not to the 
base, and enter into an agreement that there will be a compensation 
committee to work towards a range of what market is, create a better 
model and present the findings in 2 years.  S. Marotz clarified that the City 
is willing to enter into a 2 year agreement as long as the City is able to 
control the risk of the second year of the contract and therefore is willing 
to offer the Union whatever dollars the FOP is able to get next year, not 
the percentage since the numbers are different due to department make up, 
the same as this year.  S. Marotz stated or we can agree upon a fixed 
percentage or amount, but let’s talk about it.  R. O’Hearn asked what S. 



07/19/2016 

Marotz wants as the next step; S. Marotz responded that he doesn’t 
understand why the Union wants to leave today without talking about their 
issues because it’s an inefficient use of our time; S. Marotz still doesn’t 
understand what their big problems are that gives him the ability to 
anything except wait and see what the Union comes back with next time; 
that’s an absolutely inefficient way to negotiate. R. O’Hearn asked for a 
caucus. 

 Caucus 2:46pm-3:16pm
 R. O’Hearn stated that at the last session the Union presented their best 

offer that they would be able to get ratified and as stated earlier, the Union 
was under the impression that there would be no money available and at 
that time, the Union was moving to another insurance carrier.  R. O’Hearn 
stated that the membership wants to be with the Northwest Firefighters 
Trust and wants them to move in that direction; the Union’s last proposal 
was their best and the City’s proposal will not be ratified and the two 
groups are too far apart; the Union has no answer to the questions asked by 
the City.  R. O’Hearn asked how S. Marotz wants to move forward.  S. 
Marotz summarized the Union’s numbers: a 1.5% to base wages for FY17  
corresponds to a cost to the City of over $160,000 as compared to the 
current compensation base; a 2% to the base in FY18, which when 
combined with the $160,000 is approximately $250,000 more that current 
budget amounts; FY19 ask is 3% to base wage which is $400,000 over 
today’s amounts; the Union’s proposal is a guaranteed cost to the City of
$750,000 over 3 years, is that correct?  R. O’Hearn responded that he 
agreed that’s what the numbers add up to and that the City should have 
some of the money, the 1.5%, available as the City should have budgeted 
higher Aetna costs.  S. Marotz again stated that the Union is operating 
under the fallacy that the fire department is entitled to leave the City’s 
insurance coverage.  R. O’Hearn replied hold a minute: last year the Union 
followed the process which ended in fact finding and the Union won; so the 
Union disagrees when S. Marotz states they are not entitled to leave the 
City’s carrier.  R. O’Hearn stated that the only issue now is over the Open 
Meeting Violation, the Union has Contract language that says they are 
entitled to move; the only dispute is over whether there was an Open 
Meeting violation which the City Council says is a procedural move and 
not dealing with the outcome.  S. Marotz stated that the consequence of the 
statute of the Open Meeting violation is that any decision reached in 
violation of the law is void and not enforceable; therefore, the status quo is 
reinstated.  S. Marotz then stated that if the Union wanted to negotiate out 
of the City’s insurance program they should have presented a proposal and 
the Union did not; therefore, the Union is not entitled to leave.  S. Marotz 
then stated that as the Union is not entitled to leave the City’s insurance 
program, any money that may or may not have been budgeted for insurance 
is not the Union’s money; it is the City’s money that the City Council and 
Mayor can use how they think is in the best interests of the City.  S. Marotz 
stated that the money budgeted for Aetna is not all money available to even 
throw at the firefighters as it goes to different funds.  S. Marotz stated that 
the City is in a position with the insurance savings that the Council is 
willing to offer some money to the Union as long as those efforts don’t 
cause greater issues with current compensation problems and the City is 
willing to work towards that over 2 years; any increases to the 

do



• 

• 

• 

07/19/2016 

base are cost prohibitive and the risk of guaranteeing those numbers in the 
future is something that the City cannot do. J. Stroschein interjected that 
she heard that property tax revenue numbers are only going to grow about 
$2 to $3 million because the City took a $13 million reduction on ON 
(Semiconductor); therefore, there will be very little growth to the City's 
revenue. J. Stroschein stated that the City is continuing with department 
reorganizations because they are a way to trim the City; market valuation, 
population growth, and issues with liquor and sales tax are likely to 
continue to keep the City's revenues from increasing. J. Stroschein stated 
that the City has to be conservative as she does not see the growth 
happening. S. Marotz again stated that the Council is willing to give the 
Union $79,000, the same as what was given to police salary cost increases, 
in net so that PERSI and taxes are included in that amount. S. Marotz 
stated that the Council is willing to give the Union $79,000 this year 
without question and that's less than�% on base which is less than the 

1.5% ad pay bonus; the City is willing to figure a 2nd year to the contract, 
but there will not be a 3rd year. R. O'Heam responded that the Union had 
nothing else to discuss; S. Marotz asked what was next. R. O'Heam stated 
he is not optimistic that we'll reach an agreement based on where we are at 
here and it appears there is a possibility the two sides are at an impasse on 
wages and healthcare. S. Marotz asked when the Union would know. R. 
O'Heam stated that if $79,000 is the best the Council has authorized you 
to come with, the Union knows today; S. Marotz asked if the Union was 
declaring an impasse. R. O'Heam stated, no, the sides are a long way 
apart. S. Marotz stated that the Council authorized $79,000 and the Union 
can decide how to distribute that to the Union membership. S. Marotz 
continued, from a per person standpoint, the 80 firefighters compared to 
the 130 bargaining members for the FOP, from a per person standpoint, 
the Union is much better off than the policemen. S. Marotz stated that non
sworn employees didn't get anything, were frozen and the City's not 
asking you to do that; and the FOP was willing to do that. S. Marotz 
continued that from a per person standpoint, firefighters are getting a much 
better proposal than police got. S. Marotz stated that the Council will not 
authorize more than $79,000 and he believes there is a way to figure how 
to distribute that in an agreeable way; the City believes there is a chance of 
reaching agreement for the second year if the Union is willing to talk; 
however, the Union's position of 1.5% to the base for this year and 2% to 
the base next year will not happen. R. O'Heam stated there will be a 
Union meeting tomorrow and by the next meeting he will have a good 
picture of where they are at. S. Marotz stated the negotiations have until 

July 29th to be concluded; 30 days. 
The Union and City agreed for the next meeting to take place on Tuesday 

July 261h 
at 9:00a.m; S. Marotz needs to be done by 2:00p.m. 

Documents attached to the July 19, 2016 meeting minutes: City Counter to 
Fire Proposal F-4. 
Session #6 adjourned at 3:32p.m . 


































































































































